
 

 

 
Date of issue: Date Not Specified 

 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY PAPER 

 

The following Papers have been added to the agenda for the above meeting:- 
 

* Items 9 and 14 were not fully available for publication with the rest of the agenda 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA 

ITEM 
REPORT TITLE PAGE WARD 

    
 

9.   Growth Fund 
 

1 - 4  

    
14.   2015-16 Forward Agenda Plan and Key 

Decisions Log 
 

5 - 10  

 
 

  

MEETING: SLOUGH SCHOOLS FORUM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CAMBRIDGE EDUCATION:   

 

LOCAL AUTHORITY:     

Maggie Waller (Chair), John Constable (Vice Chair), 
Virginia Barrett, Eddie Neighbour, Jo Matthews, Gillian 
Coffey, Jon Reekie, Philip Gregory, Kathleen Higgins, 
Helen Huntley, Paul McAteer, Navroop Mehat, Angela 
Mellish, Carol Pearce, Debbie Richards, Jo Rockall, 
Hardip Singh, Kate Webb, Nicky Willis and Sally Eaton 
 
Robin Crofts 
 
Coral Miller, Paul Wilson, George Grant, Krutika Pau 
and Rajpreet Johal (Clerk) 

  
DATE AND TIME: TUESDAY, 12TH JANUARY, 2016 AT 8.00AM 
  
VENUE: BEECHWOOD RESEARCH AND CONFERENCE 

CENTRE, LONG READINGS LANE, SLOUGH, 
BERKSHIRE, SL2 1QE 

  



This page is intentionally left blank



Growth Fund 2015-16  170914 

SLOUGH SCHOOLS’ FORUM 
12th January 2016 

 

 
Growth Fund 2016-17 – Increased class size funding mechanism 

(Directorate of Wellbeing) 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To seek approval from Schools Forum for a mechanism for funding 

additional school places over and above the existing Planned 
Admissions Number of schools, when requested by Slough to meet 
Basic Need requirements. 

 
  
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the funding mechanism described in section 5.3 is approved. 
 
2.2 The funding is contained within the previously approved Growth Fund 

envelope for 2015-16. 
 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Slough continues to have an increasing pupil population from inward 

migration alongside a rising population from increased birth levels.  
There are limited places available in most statutory year groups and 
new arrivals may not be offered a suitable place without schools 
increasing their class sizes.   

 
3.2 Options for creating new bulge classes are all but exhausted.  Larger 

classes can provide flexibility by being created as and when required in 
the area of the town where they are most required. 

 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 The proposed mechanism for funding pupils above PAN are based on 

the principle that costs to the Growth Fund should be minimised as this 
is a limited fund while ensuring that schools are adequately funded for 
the extra pupils they admit. 

 
4.2 Initially the policy of funding pupils over their PAN was limited to 

primary schools but this has been extended to secondary schools as 
there is a similar pressure on places for years 9, 10 and 11. 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

Page 1



Growth Fund 2015-16  170914 

 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
  
5.1 Following a consultation by Slough last year on the option of expanding 

primary class sizes to 32, it was agreed this was a suitable option for 
addressing the current pressure on school places.  As part of the 
consultation schools were asked if their school would consider having 
larger classes and the main feedback from those who were willing was 
that revenue funding would be required.  In some cases capital funding 
was also requested.   

 
5.2 In response to this feedback a paper was taken to School Forum on 9th 

December 2015 to request approval to provide revenue funding in the 
form of Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) for the additional pupils 
admitted by schools at the request of the Local Authority.  Funding was 
approved and out of the discussion at Schools Forum came a request 
that the same funding principles are explored for secondary schools. 

 
 
5.3 Funding Mechanism 

Schools will receive AWPU funding at 2015-16 level for ‘the period’ that 
they make each ‘additional place’ available at the request of Slough.   

 
Additional Place –  this is a school place that is over and above the 

PAN for that year group; it is also higher than the 
number of pupils in that year group as at the 
October Census for that academic year.  This 
definition avoids double funding pupils, as schools 
will receive funding for the number on roll reported 
as part of this Census. 

 
The Period -  this will be agreed in units of whole terms as a 

minimum except in the first term which may 
already have started.  This will allow revenue 
funding to be provided near the start of each term 
and avoid the need for claw back. 

 
Agreement –  the funding is not retrospective and will only apply 

where it is agreed by Slough that funding will be 
provided in advance. 

 
 
5.4 Academies 

There is an issue with funding of academies between April and August 
as the EFA funds Academies from April to August in arrears.  The 
mechanism for claiming this funding is in January 2016 at budget build 
time via the APT.  Any decisions to create places after this date cannot 
be recouped from the EFA. 
 

Page 2



Growth Fund 2015-16  170914 

In order to include new places on the APT form, the number of new 
places and the school names need to be known in advance.  At this 
stage we do no know how many places we need and where we need 
them, this will be dependent on the rate and nature of applications 
received going forward.   
 
This issue will be raised with the EFA by Slough Borough Council as 
this will deter some schools and it will affect Slough’s ability to create 
the places needed to meet our basic need requirements. 

 
5.5 Non-Academies 

As currently happens with bulge classes, the Growth Fund will support 
non-Academy schools from September to March, thereafter funding is 
provided via the next School Census in October.  This is because Non-
Academies are funded April to March.  

 
5.5 Affordability 

Currently there remains £203K available in the 2015-16 Growth Fund 
for funding further new places.  On average each new place created 
via larger classes will cost: 
 

• £530 to the end of March for both Academies and Non-
Academies, assuming a place is available for 2 full months. 

 
 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 Local Authorities are under a statutory duty to ensure that there are 

sufficient school places in their area, ensure fair access to educational 
opportunity and promote the fulfilment of every child’s educational 
potential. 

 

Section 151 Officer – Strategic Director of Resources  
 
6.2 The financial implications of the report are outlined in the supporting 

information. 
 
 Access Implications 
 
6.3 There are no access implications. 
 
 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 School Organisation Group (SOG) and Slough Schools Education 

Forum (SSEF). 

Page 3



Growth Fund 2015-16  170914 

 
 Method of Consultation 
 
7.2 Consultation was emailed to all SOG and SSEF members on 6th 

January 2016 and responses were requested within 2 days. 
 
 Representations Received 
 
7.3 Responses were still being received at the time this report was being 

submitted, a verbal update will be given to Schools Forum on the day. 
 

• All responses received by schools to date were in favour of 
the mechanism.   

 

• A high number of queries were received regarding the 
statement that funding would not be provided for academies 
between April and August, the explanation is included in para 
5.4. above. 

 
8 Background Papers 

None 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Coral Miller (Principal Accountant, ECS)  
(01753 477209)  
coral.miller@slough.gov.uk  
 
Tony Madden (Principal Asset Manager) 
(01753 875739) 
tony.madden@slough.gov.uk  

 

Page 4



����������	
�����������������������	������������������������
�	����� 

!��
������������
����������	
��

���

����������	
��

������������"

���������	
��

#��
��

$���������������������%�	���&�	���������'�
�������������

���������	
��������������	������������������		����	��������	������������	����������������������	������	�����������������	�������������������		�������	�����������

��������������������������
	���������	�������
�������
	�������������������	����	��������������������
�	�� !�"""��	� #"�"""���������$�%����������������

����
�����	�����	������	�������	���	�������������	�������	�������	�������	������
�����������������	������&�'��������������	��������	������	�����		��(��������$� �()�*)���� + �+�

$��	�����,�����-�.��	�����

%���������������� )"�"""�
�	��*"#+,#-�&�'�����������������	������	�������	������������������������	��	����	���������	��������	������������������������	
�

�������*"#.���� #""�"""�������	������	�������������	������������������������	���������������	
������	������		������	�����������������������*"#-,#.$�/���

��	�	���������������	���	���	�����0����1�����2�	�3�������		���2�	�3��������
������������������	�3��������������
�������������$� �()�*)����  �+�

/�!

%������	���������24�������������������	���	
�	����-������3���������������&
5����	���	�������
���	�������������������%��	������$� �()�*)���� 0 �+�

���������
�������1���2����	������	��	���3�����

6��������	���������	����
�	��&��������6���	������������������	��������������	
�����$ ��)��)���� � � �

��������4��
�����

��������������	������	���������		����	����*"#*������
�	������		���	�����	������7	����(��
��������������	�������������
����������������	����+��	�.�����$�

%������	���������������		���������������	�������� -""�"""����*"#+�����������������������������
������������	�����������������$�

��)��)���� � � �

5�����������	1��
�����
���

%������	��������������
�������������������	������������	���������������������	
����������������	����	���������������������	

8����
������($
��)��)���� � � �

6
�	�	���7
����#�����	����

%�����������������������	
�����2�����4	���	��6���������	�����3�������������������		����	�����	�����������

�������
	��������������		���
	��#.9#)$
��)��)���� � � �

7
�����	�����)�3�	�
���

���		����	�������������������	�����	��	
��8�������	������
�(����*"#.9#)����������	�����	��	
����������+:����*"#.9#)�������������;�������
	�����
��	�����	����

������
	��*"#.9#)$
��)��)���� + � �

-	�8����
������+)� 

���		����	�����������	��������'�	���������
	��*"#.9#)$�%�������������������
������	������������	��
�����<�=�
	������������������	
���������
	��

*"#.9#)$
��)��)����  �(�

$��	�����'��������-�.��	�����

The principle of distributing the final underspend by numbers on roll was re-affirmed. ��)��)���� ( �(+

�2�������7
����9��%7�:��;3�	�	���<��8��������7��1��
	��
���	���	1��=�����>	����.����=�

<�����������	������������
	���52&>��?�����	�����3�	�����2����	�������	��@��������������������������		��A���������	
��������		����	�����	�����	�

���	�����,�������	������	���������������������	������	�	���$�

&�����	�������������,�������	��	
�����/�����=��	��������������
������������7�����*"#.$
��)��)���� 0 �( 

#��	����

���		����	����B���&�����	����	������������*"#-����	��	����C+�7�����*"#)

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 1

4

P
a
g
e
 5



����������	
�����������������������	������������������������
�	����� 

6����������������		���	���
�	�����		����	����������3�����������
	�������	����������������������	��������	��$����		����	������	����3���6�������	���

��	�������������	�����
	��������������	��������	����	������	���$��

%�����������������������	�����	�������3����	�
������������������������������������������		����	����������������������������������	����	�����

�����������	������	�������������	����������������$���������������������������	��������		��������������	��	����
	���$

��)��)���� * �((

#��	����

������6�������?���2�����A��'��������		�@��������	�����	��������		����	��������������������������	��������		��������$� ��)��)���+ � �0�

#��
����3��	1��
�����������������	������

%��������	����������	�
�����	��������������������������?7	�����0	����@������	��	������	��������	�,�������
�	������&�'����
����������	�������������	����		���

�	�������������������������	��$
��)��)���+ � �0�

%������	���������	��������������	��	�������������	
����		����	��������������	��	����������C%�����������������
	����	���������������������������������������

�	����$�
��)��)���+ � �0�

$��	�����'��������-�.��	�����

Schools Forum agreed that the £998k underspend be redistributed to schools but not that the pensions deficit owed be netted off; schools to 

be notified of their pensions libabilty and billed separately from any underspend payment. ��)��)���+ + �0 

$��	�����'��������-����+)� �

The centrally retained DSG 15/16 budget figure for Cambridge Education was agreed.  Further detail is to be brought back to Schools Forum 

of the allocation of the individual strands of funding and the associated justification for spend. 

LA retained element:  the bottom line figure of £241,034 was agreed. A report will be brought to the March Schools Forum of 14/15 anticipated 

spend and what the budgets are likely to be spent on in 2015/16. This will be a matter for final decision in March. The £241,034 to be held in 

reserve pending the further report in March.  

��)��)���+  �0(

���+)� �7
����/	�����

Schools Forum noted the 2015-16 formula factors and timetable (factors and budget pro-forma are predicated on the recommendations of the 

Schools Forum 5-16 formula Task and Finish group). To be submitted to the DfE following Council ratification. ��)��)���+ ( �00

���+2� ���-���������7���<������2����������3�>	���.������
���	���
����

Schools Forum noted the Schools Block budget for 2015-16. 

De-delegation of Trade Union support: the 3 maintained primary schools' members present voted unanimously in favour of de-delegation at 

the current unit cost. Both secondary maintained schools members present voted in favour of de-delegation at the current unit cost. ��)��)���+ 0 �0*

���+2� ���-�7���<��;,����?���7���<=�

Schools Forum agreed to carry forward £600,000 from 2014/15. ��)��)���+ * �*�

#��	����

Sally Eaton attended the meeting as an observer, with a view to taking on the role of member representing the PVIs.  Maggie Waller thanked 

Jean Cameron for her valuable contributions and support to both the Schools Forum and the Early Years Task and Finish Group over many 

years as this was her last meeting. A new member to represent Children’s Centres is being sought (since meeting advised: Emma Slaughter, 

Interim Head of Children’s Centres).

�+)��)���+ � �* 

/�!

It was noted that the £500,000 previously removed from the DSG in 2014/15 in respect of PFI had been returned and would be distributed to 

all schools and academies imminently.  The £500,000 for 2015/16, removed in error, will also be returned. �+)��)���+ � �*0

$��������������3�/�����������������������

It was noted that an annual review of places should take place (report to Schools Forum) �+)��)���+ � �**

���		����	����B���&�����	����	������������*"#-����	��	����C+�7�����*"#)

P
a
g
e
 6



����������	
�����������������������	������������������������
�	����� 

%�	���&�	��

Schools Forum agreed the 2015/16 Early Years centrally held budgets and noted the summary of the Early Years block budget.2015/16 

including forecast growth.  �+)��)���+  ���

#��	����

John Constable is to write to academy proprietors regarding the three membership vacancies, following a review of the January 2015 census.
�+)��)���+ �� ��(

#��	����

1������������5������������?����4�������(��4������(�������@���������5�	��?�����C%�������@�����������	�����	������������$� � )�+)���+ � ��0

���		����	��������������5�����1�����	������7	�6����������	���������������
	����������	�����	����	��	������$ � )�+)���+ � ���

�������!��	�1����7
�������+2� �.�����3	���$���	����%�
������

/�����������
�������
	��#.9#)�����	������ D+*�D".������������������	��	
� +#"3$�%������������������		����	�����������7�������������������	��������������������

���������
	���������������������	
������������	�������������
������������
������
�	������ +#"3$� � )�+)���+ � ���

/�!����+)� 

%������	������������ .""�"""�?����	
��24A����%��	��������	��
	��#.9#)@���������	��������	�����&�'����#.9#)�����������	����		����	�����������������	����		��$��

�������;����	������������ .""3�������������	
�����
����������������������������	���������$�2�������������3����?5��@������������	�������		���������������������

��������	�������,�������������,��������
���������E����������������������,�����	��������		���2���������������	�������������	�����6���������	����,����������

�������	�$�%����������������E	������������	�����	�
�	�������������������		����	�������3�����	���,������������������������	�����������������	����������	���	���$
� )�+)���+ + ���

/�!��������!��	�1������1�����

���		����	��������3����	��	������������� *""3�	
������������������
�������������������,����������������
	�����		��%���	�������?�������-##��	��@��	��	���������

�	��24(��
�������	
��������		�(����%�����������*"#.,#)$��%����������������������	�	����	�����	�����3��	��������		����	���������������7�����	�����������	�����

��	�	����?����	���������������������@�
	���	��������	�����������	�$�

1	�������*���%����	��������	����	����������������.���	�����������	��������
�	���������������$

� )�+)���+ + ���

-	�8����
���:
�2>
	�������2��+�

���		����	�����������	������
	������������	��� !!�"""��	�����'�	���������
	��*"#.�,�#)$�%������	�
��������������*"#.�,�#)��	���'�	�������������	��

���	;������� #$*.������	�$
� )�+)���+  ���

,����?���7���<

���		����	�����	��������������	
�����0����1�����2�	�3���������������������������
	���24����4��������5�����	���������	������������	������������	��������	��$
� )�+)���+ ( ��+

����)�+�%�	��&�	��7���<�$�		����	8�	��

���		����	�����	������������5����F����&�'��������������
	�������	���������,��������� #�-D*�-!G�������	�������������
	�����	
�����������	���������	��������

����������	�������������	�����������������	������������������;���	
��������	��$�
��)�*)���+ � ���

$��	�����'������7
�����:
��>
	��

���		����	������������������#-,#.������������	
� )"�"#"�����������		���2�	�3�����������
	��������	�����'�	������������	������	������������#),#G���������	�������


	����	���$

���		����	������������������5����F������	�3������������*"#-,#.�	
� )�.DG���	�����������������5����F���$

���		����	�����	������������0����1�����2�	�3��������������������������	�
�����;���������	�������0����1���������������	���������*"#),#G���������	����������

���	���	���������$�

�	��4��������5�����	�������������������������������	�	�����	���������	������	����		����	������������;���������$�%������	������������5����F������������

����������������������������-�	
����������?�	��@$

��)�*)���+  �� 

�������!��	�1����.��	����

���		����	����B���&�����	����	������������*"#-����	��	����C+�7�����*"#)

P
a
g
e
 7



����������	
�����������������������	������������������������
�	����� 

���		����	�����������	���	���� +.�"""�	
���������������	�����	���>�������	
������%�
������1����������		�����>�������	
������7���	�����		��������������

�	��������������,���	��������������		�$

���		����	�����������	���	������������� G"�"""��	�����	�������0���������(��	���	�����������������������H��������������H������	�$

���		����	���������	��������	�����	�����������	
� *""�"""�	
��������		��%���	���������������	��	����������	�����4	�����(��
�������	
������	��������	���	��������		��(�

��%�������$

%����������������
	��	�����������	���	����	�����������������������	
�����������������	��������	�����������������;�����������	�����������4��������

5�����	�������������?��������������)��	��@$

��)�*)���+ ( ��(

����������	
����3�5��������'1�8�����.������$������
����

���		����	��������	������������������������������������
,�����������������?�������;��@$

���		����	�����	���������������4	��������	��?�������;�2@�����	��������������	��������
	�����	��$ ��)�*)���+ 0 ��0

'1�8��3������3�	�������������������

���		����	������������	������������	������������
	��������������		���

���		�����	�����3������������	
�������������	��������������������������������$�$�	������������������������������?*$D�	
�������@�

1����	�������	�����
���	��	�����������		����
	���;��������������	���	�
�������������?+$)�	
�������@�

���		����	�����������������������	������	
�������	�	�������������������������������2�����4	���	��6���������������
���������	������	�������;����������?-$*�

	
�������@$

��)�*)���+ * ��*

#��
����3��	1��
����������	�������	����+�

%������	���������������&��	��������������������	�
�����������	�
�������
	�������	���������������	
��������		����	������4	��������	���
	��	������������	������

�������		����	����������*+��������������������$
� )��)���+ � ��*

������������%�	���&�	���������	�
�����������+�2��3%�$���
��������

/����������	�����	����	�����&
5��	�������	�����������������������������	�����	����������������������4��������������		����	�����	������	�����	��$�/���4����

���������������	���������	
������	����
	�������$�
� )��)���+ � ���

�������!��	�1����.��	����

�����������	�������������	���	�����������������������	
����� +"!�"""�*"#.9#)���������������������������������������		������	�������������$��	��	�����

��	���	���������������*+���������������������,������	���,��	�����	�������������������������>�������	
������������	����
������� #+�"""�����������	�

	

�������� *)�"""��	���������	
����	�����0�����������	��������������������$�

%���������������������������� #D"�"""�������������
�������	�����0����1�����2�	�3��	��	����������	�����������	
���������������������	���;���������$

��	������
����4��������5�����	�����		��%���	������������������
	��*"#-,#.�	
� *#"�"""���������������	�����	������������	�	���
	������	���	��	
� *"�"""��	�


�����������	
��	�3��	���	���	���
���������		������	�������	���	��$�

��������	
� +.�"""������	�������
	�����	E���������H�����������
	�������	���		���������
	������
	��F���)�����������������	�����������������������������$

����������	�	����
	��������������� #..�"""�����������������	������	����		����	�������&�������$

� )��)���+ + ���

#��
����3��	1��
�������� ���:����	����+�

%����-+D��7	��H��3���?2�����4	����6�/9'	�	������%�
���@��5�����1�����	���?=��	��4	���@����7	�6�������?�������	��@��	�����������������������������

��������	��	
�0������������?B����������@��	���$�

%����--#��4	�
�������������� #D"�"""��	��������
�������	�����0����1�����2�	�3�����	���	

�����
���
�	����������������	���������������������$��
�*)��)���+ � ��*

-	�8����
������ �

�������*"#),#G�&�'��	��������
	��'�	���������������������� *."3���	� #$#������	�$�

'�	�������������������	������	������	�7��������		����	������	���������
�������
	������������;����	��������������������������������	����������������������		��

�������������	������������	�����1����������������������$�
�*)��)���+  �+�

$��	�����'�������������������7���<

������� D++3���	�	����
	��*"#),#G�
	��4��������5�����	���	�����������		������	��������	�3��������	
����� #$*���	����������������7��������		����	���$�����

������������������������	
� *+"3������������������		����	����? .+3@����45H��? #-D3@$��2������	������	�������3��	����		����	�������7����$�
�*)��)���+ ( �+�

���		����	����B���&�����	����	������������*"#-����	��	����C+�7�����*"#)

P
a
g
e
 8



����������	
�����������������������	������������������������
�	����� 

�2��������������� 2�(
/�����,�������	��	
�������	�	�����������
	�����������	�������	�����������?�52&>�@��������������������������	�����������������		��$

/�����=��	�����������,�������	�������
��������������
�����������
����	��
�	��������$�
�*)��)���+ * �+�

'1�8��3��%7��:
�	�����
������#���������

���		����	��������	������������������
�����������	�	�	�����	�	��������52&>�$ �*)��)���+ 0 �++

�����������	��	���	1�8�

/�����	�	���������������������������������������$� �*)��)���+ �� �+ 

���		����	����B���&�����	����	������������*"#-����	��	����C+�7�����*"#)

P
a
g
e
 9



P
a
g
e
 1

0

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n

k


	Agenda
	9 Growth Fund
	14 2015-16 Forward Agenda Plan and Key Decisions Log
	Schools Forum Key Decisions and Issues Log September 2014 and ongoing V3 January 2016 1


